ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 15, 2010
8:02 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Senat or Bettye Davis, Vice Chair
Senator Charlie Huggi ns

Senat or Donal d O son

Senator Gary Stevens

MEMBERS ABSENT
Senat or Joe Thomas, Co-Chair
COWM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO 224

“"An Act establishing the governor's performance schol arship
program and relating to the program establishing the governor's
per formance scholarship fund and relating to the fund; relating
to student records; naking conform ng amendnents; and providing
for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 224

SHORT TI TLE: POSTSECONDARY SCHOLARSHI PS
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNCR

01/ 19/ 10 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 19/ 10 (S) EDC, FIN

02/ 03/ 10 (S) EDC AT 8: 00 AM BARNES 124

02/ 03/ 10 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 03/ 10 (S) M NUTE( EDC)

02/ 15/ 10 (S) EDC AT 8:00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
02/ 15/ 10 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 15/ 10 (S) M NUTE( EDC)

02/ 19/ 10 (S) EDC AT 8: 00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
02/ 19/ 10 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 19/ 10 (S) M NUTE( EDC)

02/ 22/ 10 (S) EDC AT 8: 00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
02/ 22/ 10 (S) Heard & Hel d

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -1- March 15, 2010



02/ 22/ 10 (S) M NUTE( EDC)

02/ 26/ 10 (S) EDC AT 8: 00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
02/ 26/ 10 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 26/ 10 (S) M NUTE( EDC)

03/ 01/ 10 (S) EDC AT 8:00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 01/ 10 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 01/ 10 (S) M NUTE( EDC)

03/ 10/ 10 (S) EDC AT 8:00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 10/ 10 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 10/ 10 (S) M NUTE( EDC)

03/ 12/ 10 (S) EDC AT 8:00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 12/ 10 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 12/ 10 (S) M NUTE( EDC)

03/ 15/ 10 (S) EDC AT 8:00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

JOVD STEWART, aide to Senator Meyer

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addressed the items of concern from the
Department of Education and Early Devel opnment on SB 224.

MURREY RI CHVOND, ai de to Senat or Thonmas

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addressed the itens of concern from the
Department of Education and Early Devel opnment on SB 224.

LARRY LEDOUX, Comnmi ssi oner

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opment ( DEED)

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed concerns with provisions in CSSB
224, version S.

DI ANE BARRANS, Executive Director

Al aska Commi ssi on of Postsecondary Education ( ACPE)

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed concerns with provisions in CSSB
224, version S

JEAN M SCHEL, Attorney

Legi sl ative Legal Services

Legi sl ative Affairs Agency

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addressed the legal issues of wusing intent
| anguage within a piece of |egislation.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 2- March 15, 2010



ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8:02:12 AM

COCHAIR KEVIN MEYER called the Senate Education Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:02 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Huggins, Davis, and Co-Chair Meyer.

SB 224- POSTSECONDARY SCHOLARSHI PS

8:02:21 AM

CO CHAI R MEYER announced continued consideration of SB 224. He
called on the two conmttee aids to walk the commttee through
the points of consideration and offer sone suggestions and
conprom ses to the concerns that Conmm ssioner LeDoux had.

8:04: 36 AM
SENATOR OLSON and SENATOR STEVENS j oi ned the neeti ng.

8:04:56 AM

JOVMO STEWART, aide to Senator Myer, said he would like to
address the itens of major concern which he included in a
handout to the nenbers of the commttee.

The first item of concern was the issue of non-traditional
student accommodations. There were three nmain points under
di scussion: the six nonth proviso, the reinsertion of the six
year scholarship tineline and the reinsertion of the eight
senester scholarship termnation. In regards to the six nonth
proviso the intent was to ensure that students do not apply too
early for the schol arshi p.

SENATOR STEVENS asked what is the earliest that a student could
apply. He requested that M. Stewart give an exanpl e.

MR. STEWART answered six nonths before graduation, which would
be around the nonth of Decenber. The adm nistration explained to
him that the six nonth proviso was sinply neant to safeguard
against too wearly an application for certification. Wth
consideration of the six year termnation date, after graduation
a student would have as much tinme as they like to apply within.

SENATOR STEVENS said he is concerned about the application tinme-
line. He wondered whether six nonths would be enough tinme to

apply.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 3- March 15, 2010



MR. STEWART referred that question to the DEED.

8: 09: 07 AM
MR. STEWART continued with the next point of consideration. He
said with the original bill students had six years to use their

scholarship before it was termnated. Under the conmttee
substitute (CS), version S it is open ended with no term nation.
There are other ways to structure this time by |engthening or
shortening the tine limt. Finally there is the eight senester

maximum limt included in the original bill. Wthin this eight
senmester maxinmum if a student were to take courses half tine,
they would still use up one of their allotted semesters even

though had wused only half the award. He acknow edged the
interest of the comittee on adding sone flexibility to
accommodate non-traditional students. M. Stewart pointed out
t he addendum he included in his handout which gives a synopsis
for how SB 224, version E, and the CS function and practice. He
said he broke the issue down into four negotiable conponents
regar di ng non-traditional student s: t he eligibility for
application w ndow, the scholarship use duration (six years),
the senester count (8 senmesters versus 12 senesters), and the
senmester count nmethodology (i.e. how a student uses up a
senester). He said that the co-chairs' proposed solution to
accommodate the admnistration's desire to have some certainly
for how |l ong students would be in the system while also giving
flexibility to non-traditional students. The co-chairs' proposed
solution would allow for the foll ow ng:

to extend the "6 years to termnation®™ from the
CGovernor's version to 10 years, keep the 8 senester
count and include a "half-tine" as "half-burn"

provi so.

Under this scenario a student could attend half-time for 16
senesters (eight years), achieve their degree, and still have
two years of flexibility on either end for any circunstances
that m ght ari se.

MURREY RI CHMOND, aide to Senator Thomas, added that a student
would only be able to receive half of their scholarship if they
were attending hal f-tine.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked if M. Stewart has thought about using
credit hours.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -4- March 15, 2010



MR, STEWART answered that the admnistration's definition under
the university of half time is 6-11 credit hours; anything nore
than 11 is full time. Credit hours could certainly be used
i nstead of a senester count.

SENATOR STEVENS asked if M. Stewart is confident that all
institutions in Alaska are on a senester basis and not a term
basis. That could conplicate the matter.

MR. STEWART deferred the question the DEED.

CO- CHAIR MEYER clarified that Senator Stevens was taking into
consideration that sone institutions may be on a quarter system

SENATOR STEVENS agr eed.

CO CHAIR MEYER commented that they cane up with ten years as a
conpromise with the adm nistration. This gives sone additional
flexibility for non-traditional students but does inpose sone
limts. He suggested that they hear from the adm nistration on
the points raised so far before going on.

8:17: 02 AM
SENATOR STEVENS restated that he wonders if al | Al aska
institutions are on a senester basis.

DI ANE BARRANS, Executive Director, Al aska Comm ssion  of
Post secondary Education (ACPE), answered that all of those that
neet the definition of college or university in this bill are on
a senester system

SENATOR STEVENS asked about the application date of applying six
nont hs before graduation. He al so asked how | ong the application
process takes.

M5. BARRANS said that ideally famlies would begin planning for
financial aid nmuch earlier than six nonths before graduation. In
terms of the application process for schol arships and financial
aid students typically begin applying in January and February so
that six month tinme-frame is reasonabl e.

LARRY LEDOUX, Conm ssioner, Departnent of Education and Early

Devel opnent (DEED), added that nobst students will not have many
of the necessary requirenents until the end of the school year.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 5- March 15, 2010



SENATOR STEVENS asked about the matter of "pass/fail" in college
classes and how they would fit into the grading system to
mai ntai n the schol arshi p.

M5. BARRANS said she will have to check with the university but
said there is typically a cap to the nunber of pass/fail classes
al l oned to graduate.

CO CHAI R MEYER asked them about the ten year maximumtinme frane.

COW SSI ONER LEDOUX said it is certainly closer to what they
believe to be financially sound system but it still neans a
hi gher price tag. He also remnded the comrittee that research
shows the longer students take to enbark on their college
career, the less likely they are to graduate. Part of the
pur pose of the scholarship is to teach students about good life
choi ces.

SENATOR STEVENS said he assumes Conmmi ssioner LeDoux has the
simlar concerns about the half-time provisions that allow a
student to go for a |onger period of tine.

COWM SSI ONER LEDOUX responded that if the student is required to
have continuous enrollnent it shows diligence. He said he would
have the concerns if their attendance were hit and mss. He
would like to see a continuous enrollnent requirenent added to
that in order to acconplish the goals of the program

M5. BARRANS added that she fears they conprom se the success of
the program if they don't structure it to achieve the desired
results.

SENATOR STEVENS said he understands now that this is not the
pl ace to address non-traditional student. Perhaps the place to
address non-traditional students is in the Alaska Advantage
Program

8:25:24 AM

CO- CHAIR MEYER asked if he is correct in understanding that
Comm ssioner LeDoux is willing to accept the ten year limt but
still wants students to finish in eight semesters.

COWM SSI ONER LEDOUX replied yes.
SENATOR HUGA NS asked about the Departnent of Mlitary and

Veterans Affairs (DWA) tuition assistance program and what the
rel ati onship between the two prograns will be.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 6- March 15, 2010



COW SS|I ONER LEDOUX answered that he did not know.

M5. BARRANS said she believes they would be conplenentary.
However, for an individual who receives DWA assistance, has
ot her non-loan financial aid and does not have renaining need
they may not be eligible for the entire award under this. But if
an individual did have that amount of needs they would qualify
for both forns of aid.

SENATOR HUGA NS recommended that the conmittee get some input
fromthe DWA. He asked about addressing the shortage in certain
disciplines in the state, for exanple nmath teachers.

COWM SSI ONER LEDOUX answered that he found a nunber of prograns
to encourage young people to enter the math and science areas of
instruction. However, he believes that while this program
doesn't specifically target areas of shortage he thinks it wll
hel p because it wll increase the nunber of graduates in the
state who will have the skills to be successful.

SENATOR HUGA NS said it takes away sone incentives down the
line. In previous prograns there has been incentive for
individuals to earn certain degrees (for exanple, nmath teachers)
and teach in the bush. These prograns gave a |oan forgiveness
incentive to get teachers to stay and work in a renote school

| f an individual has already had their tuition paid, then a |oan
forgi veness programis no |longer an incentive. He encouraged the
committee to look into certain degrees that will help students
beconme nore productive after college for the state.

SENATOR DAVIS said she agrees with Senator Stevens regarding
non-traditional students. However, she is still concerned about
asking half-tinme students to finish in eight senesters.

COWM SSI ONER LEDOUX reiterated that one of the intents of the
program is to get students to graduate as soon as possible.
There is sonme research that indicates that the |onger a student
takes, the less likely they are to graduate. He reiterated that
if a student was continuously enrolled and was half-tine it may
not be as problematic. However, if a student is taking half-tine
senesters sporadically then we are not achieving what we hope to
acconplish with this program

SENATOR DAVI S agreed with Comm ssioner LeDoux. However, if half-

time students have the scholarship to assist them they m ght be
able to go to school half-time continuously.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -7- March 15, 2010



M5. BARRANS said the concerns she would have is the question of
the trade-off for a student. The trade-off would be a student
havi ng ei ght senesters over six years to finish, or making sure
that a half-tinme student be continuously enrolled. This m ght do
nmore uni ntended harm than good for the student because it my
not be possible for themto be continuously enrolled.

SENATOR DAVIS said that she strongly feels that input from
students already enrolled in college is needed.

SENATOR STEVENS asked about the criteria other than grades that
will determ ne who receives the scholarship in situations where
there are too many applicants.

M5. BARRANS answered that currently there is no nethod in the

bill for prioritization. Wthout a nmethod she believes it is
beyond the authority of the commssion to create separate
criteria or priority. Currently the bill states that the

distribution of the award to individuals would be pro-rata. This
nmeans that every student would get the sanme proportion of their
award anmount rather than sone individuals getting their entire
award and sone individuals receiving none.

8:36: 45 AM
SENATOR OLSON reiterated Senator Huggins' point about finding
incentives for graduates to go to rural Alaska and fill the

needs that are out there.

COWM SSI ONER LEDOUX said that retaining teachers in rural Al aska
is one of the departnent's major concerns. DEED is actively
| ooking at federal and state options to do that. There is sone
evidence that the nmentor program is being effective. One
challenge is to make sure that there are not only teachers in
rural Al aska, but outstanding teachers. They are approaching it
by pronoting early learning prograns in the state. He agreed
that it is a critical need.

SENATOR DAVIS agreed with Conmm ssioner LeDoux's point that the
best idea is to produce a professional workforce within the
state. Kids from rural areas who go to school in state and
becone teachers are nore likely to go back home to teach. She
thinks this scholarship will help acconplish this.

COW SSI ONER LEDQUX agreed with Senat or Davis.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 8- March 15, 2010



SENATOR STEVENS said this bill is conpletely bifurcated. W can
set up a great program here, he said, but once it gets to
Fi nance, they get to decide how nuch noney it will receive. He
is concerned that if the idea is to get kids through coll ege,
they need to be fully funded. The pro-rata idea could nmake this
fail program He asked whether they should establish criteria
that the program will fully fund as many students as possible
and when the noney for the programruns out, the program ends.

CO CHAI R MEYER sai d he has brought up a good point.

8:42:26 AM

M5. BARRANS shared Senator Steven's concerns. That was one of
prinme notivators against proposing the funding structure that
the bill has proposed. |If the program were to be outrageously
successful with high rates of graduation and eligibility, the
funding issue would have to be readdressed since assunptions
have been made on the funding needed. She agreed there is a
point of dimnishing return if the pro-rata ampunt that students
receive is too small.

COWM SSI ONER LEDQUX said many states control the flow of nobney
by tightening certain criteria (for instance, by raising the
ACT/ SAT scores or requiring continuous enrollnent). Qur program
is much looser and, if it is successful it will cost the state
nore, but we nmy achieve sonme of those results Senator Davis
al luded to. The needs based programis a significant cost to the
program It is inportant to note, he said, that the way that the
legislature is designed wll have to allocate, design and
approve the funds of the scholarship. He is concerned that
tightening the criteria could make it too elitist and not help
the kids he hopes to attract and get engaged with the system |If
the requirenments are raised too nuch, the goals of the program
will not be nmet. That is why he is being nore restrictive on
some of his responses to the questions and ideas the conmttee
has brought up.

CO CHAIR MEYER agreed with Conmm ssioner LeDoux. The program and
its funding will, in all I|ikelihood, be tweaked and changed over
the next few years as certain necessary changes ari se.

SENATOR DAVIS referred to the problems wth pro-rata
di sbur senent s. She said Finance needs to 1look into the
possibility of financing next year so that the needs-based
conponent can be addressed and split. Continuing, She asked why
the issue of including 2010 student in the bill was not included
on the list for discussion.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -9- March 15, 2010



COCHAIR MEYER said the Ilist only contains the contentious
I Ssues.

SENATOR DAVIS asked if she can assune that this is not a
contentious item

CO- CHAI R MEYER asked Conmm ssi oner LeDoux to conment.

COWM SSI ONER LEDOUX answered that the program was designed to
begin with the graduating class of 2011. They can do it but they
have not done the analysis yet. He noted that it would be very
difficult to develop the regul ati ons between now and the fall of
t he 2010/ 2011 school year.

M5. BARRANS said she thought she had heard Senator Davis
describe say at a prior hearing is that she does not expect the
state to pay for their first year retroactively but to qualify
themfor eligibility for the scholarship

SENATOR DAVI S agr eed.

CO-CHAIR MEYER asked to nbve on to the next itemlisted in the
handout .

8:51:28 AM
MR. STEWART continued on to itemtwo on the list for discussion.
In the original bill there were two tracks: academ c and career

and technical track. Associated with the career and technica
career was a $3,000.00 per year cap on awards. Under the CS,
there is a loss of distinction between the two tracks. The
adm nistration has asked the comrmittee to reinsert the career
track to allow for a differentiated curriculum The
justification being that a student noving towards career
training may not need the sane curriculum as those going on to
an academ c program

CO- CHAIR MEYER asked if the $3,000.00 per year career and
technical school funding would be inplenmented on a pro-rata
basi s assum ng the programruns short on noney.

MR. STEWART answered that the justification for the $3,000.00
cap was to guard agai nst tuition increase.

CO CHAI R MEYER asked for confirmation that on the CS there is no
cap on career and technical schools.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -10- March 15, 2010



MR. RICHMOND answered yes; it is one scholarship that could be
used at a career or academ c institution.

CO CHAI R MEYER acknow edged Conmm ssioner LeDoux's concern that
some of the vocational and technical schools are nuch |ess and
they may be tenpted to raise their tuition because of this.

MR. STEWART added that it is under the proviso that the state
wi |l never pay nore than the actual cost of tuition.

MR. RICHVOND pointed out that since a career track student is
only going to get $3000.00 per year there would be Iless
incentive to take a nore rigorous curriculumin high school.

SENATOR DAVI S asked that if a career class was to cost nore than
the allotted $3,000.00, why penalize a career track student.

SENATOR STEVENS asked how the committee can decide what the
needs are going to be in 10-20 years from now. He is concerned
about creating a $3,000.00 per year limt when that may not be
enough noney for such a program down the |ine.

8:57:31 AM

CO-CHAIR MEYER confirnmed that these are all good thoughts,
al t hough he does understand the Conm ssioner's concerns about
t he added costs to the program

SENATOR HUGA NS asked to see the list that the Departnent of
Labor (DOL) is supposed to namintain of eligible career training
progr amns.

MR. STEWART answered that he has |ooked at the three existing
lists: one maintained by the ACPS, one by DOL, and one that is
enbedded in statute. Under any of the constructs however, a
master list will be created. One question has been whether it
this master list needs to be reviewed by the |legislature.
However, there is no unified master list at this tine.

CO-CHAIR MEYER asked Conmi ssioner LeDoux to address these
i ssues.

8:59: 54 AM

COM SSI ONER LEDQUX replied that the list will be devel oped by
the DOL and continuously reviewed and updated by DEED and ACPE

Also, the legislation requires that DEED report annually to the
| egi sl ature of any issues. This would allow the option to review
the amount of noney available for these courses on an annua

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -11- March 15, 2010



basis and adjust accordingly. He agreed that these courses wll
be evolving and that review and adjustnment may be necessary. |If
students work hard and qualify for the academ c track they wll
have the acadenmic funding available and can choose to use the
additional funds if needed. It is inportant that the career and
technical path is clear and is not lost in the college path way.

SENATOR DAVIS said she is only concerned that those funds be
sufficient. She wants to see sone data on the present costs of
the career and technical courses currently avail able.

SENATOR STEVENS asked about schools that train pilots, for
i nstance, and the cost of that.

M5. BARRANS answered that there are courses that are nore
expensive. Regarding flight training, those are probably the
nost expensi ve. Specifically for flight training, often the
mlitary is the conduit for an individual who wants to fly
commercially. However, there are collegiate prograns that |ead
to pilot license and certification, including the University of
Al aska. Any unnet need for a nore expensive program would be
covered in the needs-based funding of the program

SENATOR DAVI S asked where in the bill it says that, if students
qualify for the academ c schol arship they can use that award for
career training.

M5. BARRANS replied that it was a revision in the CS House
ver si on.

SENATOR DAVI S said she wants that in senate CS
CO- CHAI R MEYER asked his staff to nmake a note.

MR. STEWART continued on to item five regarding intent |anguage.
He said the original bill included a nunber of goals in the bil

| anguage. The CS proposed to renove those to an acconpanying
letter of intent. This is customary, he said, wthin the
| egislature so that such |anguage would not have the force of
law but would still act as a guiding nechanism and be avail abl e
to the courts as a reference. However, it seenms to staff that
the inclusion of the purpose | anguage would give it the force of
| aw and nmake it actionable in court. They have asked |egislative
| egal to address the issue.

9:08: 37 AM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -12- March 15, 2010



JEAN M SCHEL, Legislative Legal Services, Legislative Affairs
Agency, said the drafting rules adopted by the Legislative
Council discourage inclusion of intent |anguage in bills. The
purpose of this is to encourage legislators to be clear that the
aws that they draft are not open to anbiguity or
interpretation. She is not sure what the benefit of adding the
programmatic goals to the bill are if the goals are not actually
acconplished. In particular, the CS adds grade-point standards
that were previously left to the Departnent of Education to
interpret. From a judicial standpoint the use of a letter of

intent if this bill were to be adopted would be reviewed if
there were any anbiguities discovered in the bill. Leaving in
policy goals may also provide added incentive to Ilitigate

applicability of certain provisions. She suggests the letter of
intent be read on the floor along with the bill.

CO- CHAIR MEYER asked whether a letter of intent, if it 1is
approved and passed, is it noted in the statute book.

M5. M SCHEL answered that she does not believe so. However, it
woul d be clear fromthe journal on the bill.

CO CHAIR MEYER asked if M. Mchel recalled if the house CS
i ncorporated the goals in the bill.

M5. M SCHEL replied yes.

SENATOR STEVENS asked if Ms. M schel is discouraging a letter of
i ntent.

M5. M SCHEL answered that she neither discourages nor encourages
the use of a letter of intent. She discourages placing the goals
in the substance of the bill because the intent should be clear
fromthe | anguage of the bill.

SENATOR DAVIS asked if Comm ssioner LeDoux could coment on
that. She asked if the goals could be acconplished through the
regul ati on.

COW SSI ONER LEDOUX answered that he believes so and that the
coommittee will have to nmke a decision based on the best |[egal
advice that they have. He does not want the integrity of the
programto be lost, that was his position for wanting to include
the goals in the bill. He said that the regulations that they
promul gate through the State Board of Education nust Dbe
specifically related to a law. He would have to seek advice with

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -13- March 15, 2010



an attorney to see if these goals could be acconplished through
regul ati on.

CO- CHAIR MEYER said they need to talk about this further. He
agrees wth the goals but has concerns about the |[egal
ram fications of placing themin statute.

9:18:31 AM

CO- CHAIR MEYER reiterated that the goal here is to develop a CS
they are confortable with and can pass by Friday and that they
will continue reviewng the issues on Wdnesday. [SB 224 was
held in commttee.]

9:20: 01 AM
There being no further business to cone before the commttee,
CO- CHAI R MEYER adj ourned the neeting at 9:20 a. m

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -14- March 15, 2010



